CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

MARION CHAD SPEARS

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

2010-KA-02059-SCT

7

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of this case. These representations are made in order that the justices of the Supreme Court and/or the judges of the Court of Appeals may evaluate possible disqualification or recusal.

Hon. Jim Hood, Attorney General, State of Mississippi

Hon. Mark Duncan, District Attorney

Marion Chad Spears, Appellant

Edmund J. Phillips, Jr.,

Attorney of record Marion Chad Spears

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

- 1. As to Count II the verdict is against the overwhelming weight of the evidence.
- 2. Lindsey Memorandum

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant appeals his conviction of (1) kidnapping, (2) robbery and (3) carjacking and sentence on each count to fifteen (15) years confinement to be served consecutively, as a habitual criminal under Sec. 99-19-81, Miss. Code of 1972, without parole, probation, suspension or reduction of sentence.

Laurie Goodin, a secretary in the office of B & G Wood Products, Inc., Philadelphia, MS (T-37), was working in the office on August 14, 2009 accompanied by another secretary. Her responsibilities included writing checks to loggers when they presented to her tickets for logs delivered to the B& G work yard. Appellant entered the office, demanded \$15,000.00 or more (T-42) and threatened the ladies. He did not at any time brandish or display a weapon. (T-44)

While he was in the office, other loggers came in and were waited on and paid by the other secretary.

Laurie Goodin wrote a check to herself in her maiden name, Laurie Wand, for \$15,000.00. Appellant and Laurie Goodin rode in her car to a branch of Citizens Bank in Philadelphia and went in the bank together. Ms. Goodin testified that Appellant threatened to kill her if she did not cooperate with him (he never displayed a weapon).

With Appellant beside her, she presented the check for payment. A teller went to the vault for the money, put it in an envelope. Appellant took it and they walked out. Laurie Goodin drove out of town following his directions, stopped and exited the car (T-53). She went to a nearby house for help and he drove off, later leaving the car.

Appellant was later arrested in Alabama. He was interviewed by Marsha Bavetta, who wrote his statement (Exhibit 53) because he was functionally illiterate. After the conviction was announced the State presented copies of two prior convictions for uttering forgery, and appellant was sentenced as a habitual criminal to fifteen years confinement on each count without possibility of parole, suspension or other type sentence reduction.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The taking of property by deceit in part or in whole is not robbery, but grand larceny.

ARGUMENT I

AS TO COUNT II THE VERDICT IS AGAINST THE OVERWHELMING WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE

Appellant asserts that he was improperly charged and convicted of robbery and that he was instead guilty of grand larceny.

The fifteen thousand dollars taken was paid by Citizens Bank from an account in the name of B & G Wood Products, Inc. It was taken by Appellant, but there was no evidence it was in the possession of Laurie Goodin, Citizens Bank or B & G Wood Products, Inc.

Sec. 97-3-73, Miss. Code of 1973 reads:

Every person who shall feloniously take the personal property of another, in his presence or from his person and against his will, by violence to his person or by putting such person in fear of some immediate injury to his person, shall be guilty of robbery.

At the time the money was delivered to Laurie Goodwin and Appellant, it had been taken from the account of B & G by deceit, and was no longer the property of B&G.

The taking of property by deceit in part or in whole is not robbery, but grand larceny. Therefore the crime Appellant was guilty of was grand larceny per Sec. 97-17-41, Miss. Code of 1972.

At the motion for a directed verdict the court erred in failing to reduce the charge and at the motion for a new trial the Court erred in failing to reduce the conviction grand larceny.

LINDSEY MEMORANDUM

Appellant's counsel was appointed by the Circuit Court of Neshoba County, Mississippi. to conduct appeal, *in forma pauperis*..

Per the provisions of *Lindsey v. State*, 939 So.2d 743 (Miss. 2005), Appellant's counsel would show that other than the argument presented here are no arguable issues supporting Appellant's appeal, and after scouring the record thoroughly, specifically examining (a) the reason for arrest and the circumstances surrounding arrest; (b) any possible violations of client's right to counsel; (c) the entire trial transcript; (d) all rulings of the trial court; (e) possible prosecutorial misconduct; (f) all jury instructions; (g) all exhibits, whether admitted into evidence or not; and (h) possible misapplication of the law in sentencing. *See Robbins v. State*, 528 U.S. 259, 273-74, 120 S. ct. 746, 145 L.Ed. 2d 756 (2000), so asserts.

The undersigned asks that Appellant be granted twenty days additional time from the date of receipt of this brief within which to submit a supplemental brief

CONCLUSION

The verdict in Count II should be reduced to grand larceny and Appellant resentenced on this count. Appellant should be allowed twenty days to file a supplemental brief as to Counts I and III.