IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

MARION CHAD SPEARS

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2010-KA-2059

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: STEPHANIE B. WOOD

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On August 14, 2009, Laurie Goodin and Laurel Lee Bell were working as secretaries for B&G Wood Products, Inc. issuing checks to loggers who were selling their timber to the company. (Transcript p. 37-39). The Appellant, Marion Chad Spears, came in, approached Laurel's window, and handed her a note. (Transcript p. 39-40 and 61). Laurel read the note and handed it to Laurie. (Transcript p. 40 and 62). The note basically stated that Spears wanted them to write him checks in the amount of \$15,000 or he would kill them. (Transcript p. 40 and 61). Laurie told Laurel to do whatever she needed to do to get him out of the store. (Transcript p. 40 and 62). Laurel, who was only filling in for her mother for the day, was unable to get the computer to work. (Transcript p. 41 and 62). Meanwhile, Spears repeatedly told the ladies that if they messed up, he would kill them. (Transcript p. 41 and 62). Finally, Laurel told Laurie that she could not do it and Laurie, at Spears's request, began trying to issue a check to herself. (Transcript p. 42). The entire time Spears whispered to her that he would kill them if they messed up. (Transcript p. 42).

After Laurie issued the check to herself, Spears told her that she was going with him to the bank to cash the check. (Transcript p. 43). He again told her that if she messed up, he would kill

her. (Transcript p. 46). He also told Laurel that if she told anyone what they were doing, he would kill Laurie. (Transcript p. 65). They got into Laurie's car and she drove to the bank. (Transcript p. 45-46). Spears followed her inside the bank and stood beside her as she cashed the check. (Transcript p. 47-48). The teller handed Laurie \$15,000 in cash and she and Spears left the bank. (Transcript p. 50). He told her to get back in the car and drive down to Highway 19. (Transcript p. 50). He directed her to drive down a dirt road and told her to stop the car and get out. (Transcript p. 52). She did and he drove away in her car with the \$15,000. (Transcript p. 53). She ran to a nearby house and called her boss. (Transcript p. 54).

Spears was later found in Adamsville, Alabama. (Transcript p. 97). Two officers from the Philadelphia Police Department traveled to Adamsville to interview Spears where he confessed to the crimes. (Transcript p. 130-131 and Exhibit S-3).

Spears was charged with kidnapping, robbery, and carjacking. He was tried and convicted of all three charges. He was sentenced as a habitual offender to serve fifteen years for each conviction with the sentences to run consecutively.

Spears filed an appeal raising one issue with regard to the robbery conviction. He also submitted a memorandum pursuant to the holding of *Lindsey v. State*, 939 So.2d 743 (Miss. 2005) with regard to the other convictions.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Spears's convictions and sentences should be affirmed. Spears raised only one issue on appeal and that issue is procedurally barred as it was not specifically presented to the trial court. Furthermore, the issue is without merit as the evidence presented at trial clearly establishes each element of robbery.

As no other issues were presented for review and as Mississippi law establishes that the

judgment of the trial court is presumed correct, Spears's remaining convictions and sentences should also be affirmed. However, after reviewing the record, should this Court find that there is an arguable issue and thereafter order Spears's counsel to file a supplemental brief, the State will promptly respond to said brief.

ARGUMENT

SPEARS IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED FROM ARGUING THAT HE WAS IMPROPERLY CONVICTED OF ROBBERY AS HE NEVER RAISED THE ISSUE BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT.

Spears claims that "he was improperly charged and convicted of robbery and that he was instead guilty of grand larceny." (Appellant's Brief p. 2). This argument was never specifically placed before the trial court and is, therefore, procedurally barred. *See Mack v. State*, 784 So.2d 976 (Miss. Ct. App. 2001) (citing *Gardner v. State*, 531 So.2d 805, 808-09 (Miss.1988)).

Without waiving the procedural bar, the State would also assert that the issue is without merit. Mississippi Code Annotated §97-3-73 states that "every person who shall feloniously take the personal properly of another in his presence or from his person and against his will, by violence to his person or by putting such person in fear of some immediate injury to his person, shall be guilty of robbery." This is exactly what Spears did. Laurie testified that she wrote the check, left with Spears, and cashed the check because of the threats he made. She further testified that she was put in fear as a result of his threats. Additionally, Spears admitted that he took the money. The evidence presented at trial fully supports a robbery conviction.

THE STATE'S RESPONSE TO MARION SPEARS'S *LINDSEY* MEMORANDUM WITH REGARD TO THE REMAINING COUNTS.

Spears's counsel asserts that he had searched the record thoroughly and found "no arguable issues supporting [Spears's] appeal" other than the one presented above. (Appellant's Brief p. 3).

After specifically listing the matters he considered, Spears's counsel also requested that Spears be allowed an additional 20 days to file a pro se brief should he so desire. (Appellant's Brief p. 3). No such brief has been filed.

It is well established that the judgment of the trial court is presumed correct. *Moore v. State*, 914 So.2d 185, 189 (Miss. Ct. App. 2005). Because no issues other than the one addressed above have been presented for review, the State rests on that presumption and respectfully submits that no further argument on its part is required at this time. However, after reviewing the record, should this Court find that there is an arguable issue and thereafter order Spears's counsel to file a supplemental brief, the State will promptly respond to said brief.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the State of Mississippi respectfully requests that this Honorable Court affirm Marion Chad Spears's convictions and sentences.